

# Public Document Pack



Comhairle Contae  
Ros Comáin  
Roscommon  
County Council



**To: The Cathaoirleach and Each Member of the Boyle Municipal District**

**Date: Monday, 16 September 2024**

**Re: Notice of Boyle Municipal District Meeting**

Dear Cathaoirleach & Members,

Notice is hereby given that a Meeting of the **Boyle Municipal District** will be held in the **Boyle Municipal Office - Boyle MD Offices** on **Friday, 20th September, 2024 at 2.30 pm** to discuss the agenda set out below.

You are hereby requested to attend.

Yours sincerely,

A handwritten signature in blue ink, appearing to read 'Ivor Kilcline'.

---

**Ivor Kilcline**  
**Boyle Municipal District CoOrdinator**

---

**PAIDIR**

## AGENDA

1. Disclosure of Conflict of Interest (Section 177 of the Local Government Act 2001 as amended)
2. Adoption of the Minutes
  - Minutes of Boyle MD meeting on 19<sup>th</sup> July 2024
3. Matters Arising
4. Notices Of Motions (4)

**5.24 Notice of Motion – Cllr Tom Crosby**

Could Roscommon County Council conduct an investigation and address the following issues in Hanley Avenue, Boyle:

The road surface, drainage, footpaths, and boundary fencing are reported to be in a state of disrepair, causing significant concerns for residents. Furthermore, the public lighting at the end of Lower Marian Road has been non-functional for an extended period and requires attention.

**6.24 Notices of Motion - Cllr Sean Moylan**

**Motion to improve road safety in school/ church zone**

In light of the fact that we are still at least three years away from the new N5, the situation in Tulske is incredibly dangerous and difficult. There are 88 households marooned on the northern side of

the National N5 route, where many schoolchildren must negotiate crossing this national road without any aid to get to and from the school. This is also the case with many elderly people in these same houses trying to cross the very busy road to get to church.

Whereas I welcome the new intermitting speed limit flashing signs, I call on the Council (in conjunction with the RSA and / or the TII and other State Agencies if need be), to install a pedestrian crossing controlled by lights, and on a raised plateau on the eastern transition route out of the village, in or around the Chestnut Grove housing estate, which would serve all 88 houses.

This would also have a traffic calming effect where there have been many many accidents, several of which occurred at school pick up and drop off times.

There is a precedence for these type of Pedestrian Crossings on National routes in Co. Roscommon, in Tarmonbarry, Frenchpark, and Cortober, yet Strokestown, Ballinagare and Tulsk remain without any safe proper crossing of the extremely busy National Route.

#### **7.24 Notice of Motion - Cllr. Leah Cull**

That this council have the necessary signage and road markings installed at Strabragin NS Arigna R280 and the railway bridge on the R294 Gurteen road in Boyle to warn traffic of the hazardous sharp turns.

#### **8.24 Notice of Motion - Cllr Michéal Frain**

For Roscommon County Council; to extend the planned development works proposed in the Plots area of the Town, which is located off Pound Street / Barrack Street.

The proposed current works includes the installation of a skate board park in an area adjacent to the public carpark.

I hereby propose that Roscommon County Council develop the remaining area of the Plots into a Town Park with lighting and pathways to compliment the natural beauty and ambiance of this wooded area.

#### 5. Questions (6)

#### **4.24 Question - Cllr Tom Crosby**

Could the Director of Service kindly provide a comprehensive update on the current status of the design development and funding allocation for the construction of footpaths and public lighting infrastructure from Tarmonbarry Village to the local National school, aimed at enhancing accessibility and safety for residents residing in the four newly established housing estates along the designated route to the school. Notably an allocation of €80,000 was designated in the 2022 active travel budget, with an additional top-up of €20,000 in the 2023 budget.

#### **5.24 Question - Cllr Tom Crosby**

Could the Director of Service kindly provide an update with the progress on the new proposed public lighting in Rooskey Village.

#### **6.24 Question - Cllr Sean Moylan**

Have the council any update on the footpath upgrades in Forest view and Mockmoyne in Boyle as they are in terrible condition?

**7.24 Question - Cllr Sean Moylan**

At the new carpark being developed at the Woodenbridge in Drum- Is current access under the N4 to the boat sheds going to be blocked? Is there going to be a height restriction barrier going to be used on entry to the new carpark?

**8.24 Question - Cllr. Leah Cull**

Who is responsible for the upkeep of the Boyle to Lough Key cycle track?

**9.24 Question - Cllr. Michéal Frain**

Can Roscommon County Council staff carry out an audit of all outdoor amenities in this MD area, to ascertain the condition of the facilities, and the condition of the equipment therein.

As funding streams are due to open shortly, it would be extremely helpful to have an assessment carried out, as funding for repairs and replacement, may need to be considered shortly by the Council and local organisations.

6. Votes of Congratulations/Sympathy
7. Nominations for Civic Reception
8. A O B

This page is intentionally left blank



Comhairle Contae  
Ros Comáin  
Roscommon  
County Council



**DRAFT MINUTES OF Boyle Municipal District HELD IN THE Boyle Municipal Office - Boyle MD Offices  
ON Friday, 19th July, 2024 AT 11.00 AM**

**PRESENT:** Councillor Tom Crosby      **PRESIDED**

**MEMBERS:** Cllr L. Cull, Cllr S. Moylan, Cllr M. Frain, Cllr L. Callaghan and Cllr V. Byrne.

**OFFICIALS:** Greg O'Donnell, A/Director of Services  
Ivor Kilcline, Municipal District Co Ordinator  
Colm Kelly, Executive Engineer  
Gerardine Lafferty, Staff Officer

**Apologies:** .

**47.24 DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST (SECTION 177 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2001 AS AMENDED)**

There was no conflict of interest declared.

**48.24 ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES**

**Boyle MD Minutes 31<sup>st</sup> May, 2024:**

On the **PROPOSAL** of Councillor Liam Callaghan

**SECONDED** by Councillor Leah Cull

It was **AGREED** to adopt the Minutes of the Boyle Municipal District meeting of 31<sup>st</sup> May, 2024

**Boyle MD AGM Minutes 28<sup>th</sup> June, 2024:**

On the **PROPOSAL** of Councillor Michaél Frain

**SECONDED** by Councillor Sean Moylan

It was **AGREED** to adopt the Minutes of the Boyle Municipal District Annual General Meeting of 28<sup>th</sup> June, 2024.

**49.24 MATTERS ARISING**

At the AGM on 28<sup>th</sup> June, members approved time of meetings at 11.00am. However, following discussion it was agreed to amend time of meetings to 2.30p.m.

On the **PROPOSAL** of Councillor Valerie Byrne

**SECONDED** by Councillor Leah Cull

It was **AGREED** to amend time of meetings for rest of year to 2.30 p.m.

## 50.24 NOTICES OF MOTION

### 3.24: Notice of Motion submitted by Cllr. Micheál Frain for the Boyle Municipal District Meeting July 2024

That the council explore the possibility of installing traffic calming measures in built up areas, such as on Pound Street/ Sligo Road area of Ballaghaderreen.

#### Reply:

Regeneration and active travel works in Pound Street are already in progress and the narrowing of the running lanes along with other enhancement works will have a traffic calming effect.

A number of specific locations should be submitted for consideration to apply for possible funding under Active Travel, Road Safety or whatever other funding is available to Roscommon County Council.

Cllr. Frain welcomed response and that it would be dealt with under Active Travel.

He raised the issue with location of speed camera vans on the by-pass and asked if the speed van could be located closer to the town which would be more effective and that the current location was affecting sight lines. He also stated that Garda should seek input from the Fire Service, of which he is a member, which can provide data on accidents.

Mr. Greg O'Donnell stated that this issue was raised at the recent SPC meeting. Roscommon Co Council have no input on the location site of speed vans. Van locations are dictated by Garda based on collision history data. However, RCC has made suggestions to local Superintendent and Cllr. Crosby suggested this could be raised at the Joint Policing Committee.

#### Members raised the following issues:

Cllr. Byrne raised issue regarding speed control in towns and how traffic could be slowed down. She stated that more speed vans and pedestrian crossings are required.

Cllr. Moylan stated that Mockmoyne area has a problem with speeding cars. N5 – villages and towns – speed limits are different – is there different criteria. How are speed limits determined in different towns?

Mr. Greg O'Donnell stated that TII have set travel times between urban centres. There is a Speed Limit Review to take place in 2025. Change is difficult on urban roads and has to be done for all locations. He believes that the changes will likely be from 50km/h to 30km/h, 60km/h to 50/40km/h but on a case-by-case basis.

Cllr. Moylan sought clarification on **road markings** i.e. solid line, short/long dotted lines and why some areas, e.g. outside schools, have dotted lines.

Mr. Ivor Kilcline stated that where sight distances allowed, markings were changed to long dotted lines. This was to facilitate overtaking of slow moving traffic, e.g. agricultural machinery.

Cllr. Callaghan – Pound St Ballaghaderreen - speed limits, safety, etc. 50km/h however drivers do 80km/h

on that stretch of road and this is the problem. Driver behaviour and how to get driver engagement.

Cllr. Byrne stated that a lot of people don't know what the different dashes on road mean.

Mr. Ivor Kilcline stated that TII look after the road marking contracts but will discuss with Senior Engineer to see if Council can have an input.

Mr. Greg O'Donnell stated that Pound Street should improve under the AT Project. Members should provide details of other locations on N5 for putting forward for funding.

#### **4.24 Notice of Motion submitted by Cllr. Leah Cull for the Boyle Municipal District Meeting July 2024**

That this council install speed ramps on the Gurteen road out of Boyle (R294)

##### **Reply:**

This long straight 50 km/h section of the R294 to the west of Boyle was referenced previously. Decision should be evidence-based so we need to monitor speeds first and see if exceedances are disproportionate.

Cllr Cull stated that speeding on this road was the main issue for people during her campaign.

There followed discussions on possible solutions, e.g. parking build outs, pedestrian crossing, footpaths, table top ramps, pillow ramps, etc.

Mr. Greg O'Donnell stated that as a regional road, traffic has to be accommodated. He suggested members should look up the Traffic Management Guidelines Chapters 6 & 7 which details traffic management options for existing and new areas. ([DTO New Cover \(assets.gov.ie\)](https://assets.gov.ie))

He stated that RCC will look at appropriate measures available but that information on the speeds on this road would need to be gathered first. He asked that the Boyle Area prioritise this for possible inclusion in the Traffic Calming Scheme 2025.

#### **51.24 QUESTIONS**

### 3.24 QUESTION 1 – WELLBEING IN THE COMMUNITY FUNDING - COUNCILLOR LEAH CULL – 19-07-2024

To my knowledge, I think we were one of the 22 local authorities that received the €1 million in funding for "wellbeing in the community" that was announced. Could you please provide me with a breakdown of the specific purposes and how it will be distributed among the 3 MDs?

#### **Reply:**

Roscommon County Council has been awarded €140,000 over two years in collaboration with Mayo County Council. Funding will be spent over two years, 2024 and 2025. Roscommon County Council's application for funding outlined a number of elements including:

- A. Capacity building and training for artists, health care workers and local authority staff delivered by Irish Hospice Foundation
- B. Artist residencies in all palliative care units, targeted nursing homes and private residences where there is an end of life patient.
- C. Project Coordinator.
- D. Evaluation of the project.

Capacity building will commence on the 17<sup>th</sup> July following a call out by Roscommon County Council to artist panel, nursing homes and Hospice (both Counties) for interested participants.

The artists residencies are due to commence in quarter 3 and quarter 4 2024 based on the initial call out for capacity building. As of yet, Roscommon County Council is not in a position to outline per Municipal District where funding will be allocated as it will be subject to responses to A and B above.

Cllr. Cullen stated she was satisfied with response.

### 52.24 APPROVAL OF CIVIC RECEPTION NOMINATIONS

On the **PROPOSAL** of Councillor Tom Crosby

**SECONDED** by Councillor Valerie Byrne

It was **AGREED** to honour Cór Comáin, Roscommon-based Ladies Choir at the Civic Reception following their winning of first prize in two categories at the Arklow Music Festival July 2024.

On the **PROPOSAL** of Councillor Valerie Byrne

**SECONDED** by Councillor Leah Cull

It was **AGREED** to honour Ruby Caldbeck at the Civic Reception. She represented Ireland at the World Dance Championships in Prague in July 2024.

Cllr. Cull to submit her nominations to [glafferty@roscommoncoco.ie](mailto:glafferty@roscommoncoco.ie)

### 53.24 VOTES OF CONGRATULATIONS/SYMPATHY



A vote of sympathy was sent to the family of Mr. Pat McCrann, Frenchpark who passed away on Thursday 18<sup>th</sup> July following an accident.

A vote of sympathy was sent to the family of Mr. John O'Mahoney, who passed away recently following an illness. John was acknowledged for his contribution to sport and for his role as teacher and politician. Members acknowledged his lasting legacy to all people.

#### **54.24 ANY OTHER BUSINESS**

The following items were raised:

**Verge Cutting:** Could the Council hire in extra hedge cutters for 1 month in each area to deal with the glut. Local narrow roads become narrower with overgrown verges. Colm Kelly stated that he was looking at options as N4 north and south of Boyle is a priority. Members were informed that under NPWS guidelines, the Council is not allowed to cut verges. Ivor Kilcline stated that the hedgecutters are out 12 months of the year working on priority areas such as junctions and sightlines on national and regional roads. Householders are responsible for maintaining their own sightlines. There are currently 5 tractors/hedgecutters in the Boyle MD. Budget for such works is limited.

**Sweeper, Elphin:** Dust from construction lorries is affecting the flower beds at entrance to town. Ivor Kilcline stated that the cost of the sweeper comes out of local roads maintenance budget, however Council will do its best.

**Junction at 4Ps: Croghan to Boyle** – dip too deep on road – can't see oncoming traffic. Ivor Kilcline stated that he will refer this to the Road Safety. He and Area Engineer will follow up with contractor.

**Boyle Arts Festival 18-25 July 2024:** Cllr Byrne wish the Boyle Arts Festival every success.

**Strokestown Public Realm:** when is scheme likely to start? Ivor Kilcline confirmed that no date is set yet.

**Safety Barriers, Marina, Tarmonbarry:** when will they be installed? Mr. Greg O'Donnell will refer back to Cllr. Crosby.

**Lights in Strokestown resolved:** Mr. Greg O'Donnell stated that the issue is not yet resolved but he will get back to Cllr. Crosby with a response.

**Ardcare Cemetery Footpaths:** is there funding available?: Ivor Kilcline informed members that currently there is no extra funding available as funding is already allocated to the graveyards prioritised for 2024.

On the **PROPOSAL** of Cllr. Moylan,

**SECONDED** by Cllr. Frain

And **AGREED** that Cllr Crosby would follow up with Ardcarne Cemetry Committee.

**Active Travel/Safety Measures Croghan School:** Mr. Greg O'Donnell informed members that the project should commence Q3/Q4 2024.

**Tulsk Periodic Traffic Lights start date:** Mr. Greg O'Donnell informed members that the start date is 29<sup>th</sup>

July 2024 – delays were due to getting signs, etc.

**Lights in Ashfield Housing Estate, Boyle** – Were lights replaced and costs covered by RCC? Ivor Kilcline stated that this may have been covered under a Bond but that information regarding estate to be Taken in Charge can be obtained from the Planning Section.

**ACTION SUMMARY**

1. To submit R294 at Mockmoyne as a traffic calming safety scheme in 2025.
2. To review the junction at the Four Ps in Croghan on the N61 with TII's road safety inspector

**NEXT MEETING**

The next meeting will be on Friday, 20th September, 2024.

This concluded the business of the meeting.

The foregoing Minutes are  
Confirmed and Signed:  
*Ivor Kilcline*

\_\_\_\_\_  
Meetings Administrator

\_\_\_\_\_  
Cathaoirleach

\_\_\_\_\_  
Countersigned